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Reference and Administrative Details

Board of Governors
A full list of Governors is given on page 13-14 of these financial statements.
Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel are defined as Senior Post Holders and members of the Cellege Executive Team
and were represented by the following in 2020/21:

Dr Fazal Dad, Principal and Chief Exacutive; Accounting Officer

Jennifer Eastham, Vice Principal - Finance and Corporate Services

Nicola Clayton, Director of Business Developmant and External Engagemant

Stephen Malong, Executive Dean of Higher Education (until 30" September 2020)

Caroline Bracewell, Assistant Principal Higher Education (from 15 July 2021)

Rachel Tarplese, Assistant Principal Teaching and Leaming

Damian Stewart, Assistant Principal Teaching and Learning

Andrew Fickles, Assistant Principal Student Support and Engagement (untll 12! August 2021)
Jean Tracy, Clerk to the Corparation

Principal and Registerad Office: Feilden Street, Blackburn, BB2 1LH.

Professional advisers; External Auditors: BDO LLP
Internal auditors: ASM UK Consulting LLP
Bankers: Santander UK Ple, Barclays Bank Plc
Solicitors: Farbes Salicitors
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Strategic Report

Mature, cbjectives and strategies

The members present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2021.

Legal status

The Corporation was established undear the Further and Higher Education Act 1892 for the purpose of conducting
Blackburn College. The College is an exempt charity for the purposes of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011.

Mission Statement
Transforming students' lives and our community, through excellent education, training and support.

Vision Statement
Aspiring, innovating and achieving through excellence.

Value Statements
o Excellence - we strive for excellence to realise the potential of our students and staff;

Knowladge - we pramote the value of learning in fostering curious minds and to aid the acquisition of
knowledge and skills;

¢ Empowerment - we empower aur learners to change their lives through education and training;
« Equality - we promete eguality and diversity in our teaching, training, support and customer services;
» Commitment - we are committed to the education, training and support of our students and staif;
s Hespect - we treat sveryons equally and with respect.
Strategic Plan

The Strategic Plan is regularly reviewed by the Corporation Board, with the current plan covering the period 2019-
2022. This Strategic Plan was developed following consultation with Governors, Staff, Students, local
stakeholders and employers. The plan focuses on five strategic pillars of activity:

s  Sludent Experience - To provide an excellent student experience which leads to high levels of student
success and supports progression to employment, education and training and ralses future aspirations.

« Teasching and Leamning - To deliver outstanding teaching and assessment practice that enables
students, of all abilitles, to succeed in their ambitions, progress to their chosen next staps and prepares
them for leading successful and prosperous lives.

»  Curriculum - To have an industry-led curriculum which meets the needs of employers, the local economy,
addresses the regional skills shortages, has employability at its heart and provides a holistic education
experience.

» Learning Environment - To provide students with an Inspiring, sustainable and outstanding leaming
enviranment, which prepares them for industry and enables innovation in teaching and learning.

o Parinerships - To lead and be renowned for partnership work and collaboration that increases the
opportunities for different groups of students and helps communities grow and thriva.

Each of theae pillars are underginned by cross cutling themes. The cross cutting themas run through everything
that the College does and will be at the forefront of our minds:

Studeni Focus

Quality and Standardza
Finance and Resources
Pzople

Communication
Technalogy
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Since the plan was approved, COVID-18 has had an impact on the College, as it has with all other organisations

-across the world. Through the pandemic and lockdown periods, the College has kept its students and staff at the
heart of all it does, with a clear focus on supporting learner achievement and their well-being, It has been a
challenge that our students and staff have responded well to, with investments in IT to support home leaming /
working. The College has ensured it follows the Government and local Public Health guidance in ensuring it
reapens the campus as a COVID secure environment. The Strategic Plan remains completely relevant through
this time of challenge.

Strategic Report (Continued)

Financial objectives

As part of the College’s Strategm Flan, Finance and Resources is a cross cutting theme and is supported by a
financial ambition statement to ‘ensure financial stability and effective use of resources in order to invest in our
students and our staff’. The performance indicators, which were reviewed and approved by Governors in
Movember 2020, are as follows:

Objective 1

To deliver an operating surplus of at least 3% of income plus a net cash inflow from operating activities in each
year of the plan submitted to the Education and Skills Funding Agency (Current year and next 2 years),

Performance The plan submitted delivers surpluses in all years.

Objective 2

To ensure that the College continues to achieve at least grade "Gooed" financial health in both the ESFA
Financial Plan for all repurted years, with a current ratio of no less than 1:1.

Performance The financial plan submftted to the ESFA had an automated financial health grade of
‘Ouistanding' and current ratio of 2.69 for 2020/21. The budget and forecast for the
following 2 years, under the current and proposed methodology sees the automated
financial health grade remaining as 'Outstanding’ and current ratlos of 2.6 and 2.7.

Objective 3

To maintain income and expenditure (I&E) reserves in excess of 40% of income (pre-pension reserve) and in
excess of 256% of income (post pension resarva).

Performance | The |&E reserve as at 31 July 2021 was 88% of income pre-pension resetve (increase from
B4% in2020) and 10% of income post pansion raserve (increase from -0.5% in 2020).

The post pension reserve is largely impacted by the value of the pension deficit, which is
outside of the contral of College management,

Objective 4

To ensure that risk management plans are realised.

Performance A Risk Register is maintained, scoring all risks and reporting to Audit Committee and
Corporation,
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Strategic Report (Continued)

Objective 5
To genarate a cash inflow from operating activities of at least £3.5m.

Performance The net cash flow from operating activities for 2_5213:“21 was £6.2m.

Objective 6
To ensure that staffing cost to income ratio remains below 65%, as measured by the FE Commissioner.
Performance For 2020/21 the staffing cost ratio was 80%, excluding Pansion and Restructuring costs.
Achieved - e _ ;,
Resources

The College has various resources that it can deploy In pursuit of its strategic objectives; this includes our staff,
campus and net assets.

As at 31 July 2021 the College employed 5B3 full time eguivalent staff, of whom 356 are teaching stafl. Staff have
a range of gualifications to suit the level at which they teach and the College has a rolling Continuous Professional
Development (CPD) program to support the develepment of siaff across all areas of the College. In addition to
the CPD program, teaching staff can apply for support to undertake research in their area of specialism.

The College has seen an increase in its net assets from £2.2m in 2019/20 to £6.0m in 2020/21, which is a result
of increased cash and a reduction in the pension liakility from £29.1m to £27.6m. The College currently has
£11.6m of long term debt, which was used to invest in the College campus. The campus is made up the Victoria
Building, Elizabeth Building, Construction Centre, Harrison Centre, Sixth Form, University Centre, Beacon Centra,
Futuras Centre, Hegional Automotive Technology Hub and Blackbum Sports and Leisure Centre {a joint venture
with Blackburn with Darwen Council) and forms part of the tangible assets.

The College campus Includes a building which has baen vacant for a number of years and the Corporation has
agreed to dispose of Blakey Moor. A buyer has been found and as at the year end solicitors for both parties were
agreeing contracts. The expectation is that contracts will be exchanged and the sale completed in the course of
the next 12 months.

The College enrolled approximately 8,492 students. The College’s student populalion includes 2,732 16-to-18-
year-old studants, 747 apprentices, 1,451 higher education students and 1,240 adult learners.

Stakeholder relationships
Inline with other Colleges and with Universities, Blackbum College has many stakeholders. These include:

Students;

Education sector funding bodies;

FE Commissioner;

Staff;

Local employers (with specific links);
Local Authorities;

Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs);
The local community;

Other FE and HE institutions;

Trade unions; and

Professional bodies.
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The College recognises the importance of these relationships and engages in regular communication with them.

Strategic Report (Continued)

Public benefit

Blackbum College is an exempt charity under the Part 3 of the Charitias Act 2011 and is regulated by the Secraetary
of State for Education. The members of the Governing Body, who are trustees of the charity, are disclosed on
pages 13 to 14. In setting and reviewing the College’s strategic objectives, the Govarning Body has had dua
regard far the Charity Commission's guidance on public benefit and particularly upon its supplementary guidance
cn the advancement of education.

In delivering its mission, the College provides identifiable public bensfits through the advancement of education
ta approximately 8,499 students. The College provides courses without charge to young peap_le: to those whu are
unemployed and adults taking English and Maths courses. The Gollege adjusts its courses to meaet the neads of
local employers and provides training to 747 apprentices. The College is committed to providing information,
advice and guidance to the students it enrols and to finding suitable courses for as many students as peossible
ragardless of their educational background.

Development and performance
Financial results

The Collage generatad an operating surplus in the year of E161k (2019/20 — £265k deficit). The College faced a
number of income challenges as a result of COVID-19 in respect of Commercial courses, Apprenticeships and
provision of student catering. Where nat funded by other sources of income, the College utilised £227k (2019:
£208k) from the Coranavirus Job Retention Scheme to safeguard jobs inthose areas, in line with the government
guidance.

There is an overall increase in the total comprehensive income reserve of £3.9m after LGPS adjustments, note
23 provides detail on the Local Government Pension Scheme valuation and accounting adjustments.

Cash flows and liquidity

At £13.3m (201220 £3.5m) cash and cash equivalents is strang in the Corporation’s view. A capital investment
plan has been developed to re-invest in the College Campus and Curriculum eguipment to suppart the
development of the Callege, in line with its Strategy. The increase from the ptior year is due to an'improvement
in operating performance before depreciation and capital losses.

All loan facilities are subject to financial covenants and during the year to 31 July 2021 there were no concams
with the College's oparating within the banking covenants. The size of the College's total barrowing and s
approach to interest rates is modelled fo ensure a reasonable cushion between the total cost of servicing debt
and operating cashflow. During the year this margin was comfortably exceaded,

Developments

Student Experence has been a key focus for the College and has made some significant pregress in improving
the campus. This has been achieved through capital investments in the Sixth Form and general on site equipment
and facilities, along with a grant from the ESFA Condition Fund. These investments will continue as part of the
development of the College, with a clear focus on student experience and ereating a more sustainable campus.

Reserves

The Caollege has accumulated Income and Expenditure reserves of £3.7m (after FRS102 Pension adjustments)
and cash and shert term investment balances of £13.3m. The College wishes to continue to acocumulate reserves
and cash balances In line with its financial perfarmance indicators.

Tangible fixed asset additions during the year amounted to £1.0m, of which £0.6m was invested in Fixtures and
Fittings and the balance mostly on the development of the Sixth Form, Expenditure in future years is expected to

increase as the College continues to develop its faciliies to suit the changing landscape of Education within the
secior.
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Sources of Income

The College has a reliance on the education sector funding bodies for its principal funding scurce, largely from
recurrent grants. In 2020/21 the FE funding bodies provided 52% of total incoma,

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

The College is committed to reducing its carbon emissions and has taken the following measures in the year to
improve energy efficiancy:

* Lpgraded extemnal signage to:LED
* Upgraded external lighting to more efficient solutions
= Heplaced the Multi-functional devices to more energy efficient machines

The College has published on its website the Carbon Emissions report, in line with the Government’s streamlined
energy and carbon reporting requirements https:/fwww blackbum.ac.uk/about-us/corporate-
infermation/publicatien-scheme/what-we-spend-how-we-spend-it/,

Future Prospecis
Future Developments

The College performs an annual review of all areas as part of the Business Planning cycle, which includes a
review of the appropriateness of the Curriculum offer for our local community and employers, As the College looks
forward to starting T levels, this review has allocated resource for both the development of the Curriculum and
investment [nappropriate technology for 2021/22 and beyond.

The annual review also includes a review of the Campus, with the Blakey Moar building in the process of baing
sold. Further investment is planned across campus with the refurbishment of the Victoria Building. During the year
the College was advised It had been selected for FE Capital Transformation Funding in respect of the Victoria
Building. At the year end discussions were ongeing in respect of the detall and scope of the project, including the
value of Collega match funding.

Financial plan

The College Govermnors approved a financial plan in July 2021 which sets financial objectives for 2021/22 and
2022123,

Treasury policies and objectives

Treasury management is the monitoring and control of the College’s cash flows, its banking, money market and
capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of
optimum petformance consistent with those risks.

Short term borrowing for temporary revenue purposes is authorised by the Accounting Officer. All other borrowing
requires the authorisation of the Corporation and shall comply with the requirements of the Financial
Memaorandum,

Reserves Policy

The College has a Performance Indicator, as previously set out in this report that recognises the impartance of
reserves in the financial stahility of any organisation, and ensuras that there are adequate reserves to support the
College's core activities, The College reserves include £60k held as restricted reserves, As at the Statemant of
Financial Position date, the Income and Expendilura reserve stands at a surplus of £3.7m after £1_.5m non-cash
Fension adjustment In respect of the LGPS scheme (2013/20: loss of £11.2m). It is the Corporation’s intention for
reserves to be maintained in line with the Performance Indicator.
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Going Concern

The financial position of the College as at 31 July 2021, its cashflow, liquidity and borrowings are described in the
financial staterments and accompanying nofes. In the year fo July 2021 the financial impact of COVID-18 was
managed closely by management, with mitigating action taken to manage the financial risk in terms of cost control
and appropriate use of grants available.

To ensure financial stability the College operates an ongoing cost reduction and efficiency review as part of
Business Flanning (planning for the year) and Perfermance Monitoring (during the year). These reviews allow tha
College to be responsive to the changing economic enviranment in respect of student recruitment and changes
in Government policy and associated grant funding. The ongoing pandemic means that risks to student
recrultment and expenditure (to minimise the impact of student achievement) remains for the coming year and
will form part of the Performance Manitaring element of ensuring financial stability.

Tha Gollege has a year end ¢ash balances of £13.3m and £11.6m borrowings with bankers. The borrowings are
split as follows; £8.5m is loan outstanding on & 25-year term lsan running until July 2038 and £2.2m is loan
outstanding on 25-year term loan running to 2034, The College has a further £6m revolving credit facility with
terms running to August 2022 At 31 July 2021 £0.0m of this revolving credit facility was drawn (£0.0m at 31 July
2020). Future forecasts show net cash inflow from operaling activities with sufficient headroom to manage the
financial risks,

A repart an the potential impacts of Brexit has been prepared and shared with the Corporation, considering the
impact on student recruitment, staffing and the supply chain. Mo significant impact on the College has been
experienced to date.

A detailed report on Going Concern has been prepared and after making appropriate enquiries, the Corporation
considers that the College has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable fulure,
For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concem basis in preparing the financial statements.

Principal risks and uncertainties
Risk Management

The College has developed and embedded a system of internal control, including financial, operational and risk
management which is designed ta protect the College's assets and reputation.

Based on the Strategic Plan, the Vice Principal - Finance and Corporate Sarvices undertakes a comprehensive
review of the risks to which the College is exposed. The post holder identifies systems and procedures, including
specific preventable actions which should mitigate any potential impact on the Caollege. The internal controls are
then implemented and the subsaquent year's appraisal will review their effectiveness and progress against risk
mitigation actions. In addition to the annual review, the Vice Principal — Finance and Corporate Services will also
consider any risks which may arise as a result of a new area of work being undertaken by the College.

A Risk Register is maintained at the College level which iz reviewed by the Corporation Board and Audit
Committee at each meeting. The Risk Register identifies the key risks, the likelihood of those tisks oceurring, their
potential impact on the College and the actions being taken to reduce and mitigate the risks. Risks are prioritised
using a consistent scoring system.

Outlined below is a description of the principal risk factors that may affect the College. Mot all the factors are
within the College's eontrol. Other factors besides those listed below may also adversely affect the College.

1. Government funding

The College has considerable reliance on continued government funding through the Further and Higher
Education funding bodies. In 2020/21, 52% of the College’s revenue was Ultimately public funded and this level
of requirement is expected to continue. There can be no assurance that government policy ot practice will remain
the same or that public funding will continue at the same levels or on the same terms.
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1. Government funding (continued)

The Cellege is aware of several issues which may impact on future funding:

Introduction of T Levels

Apprenticeship reforms

Davolution of Adult Education Budget

Local Authority funding cuts impacting on College services and the wider economy
Reduction in staffing levels at funding bodies and Government offices to sarvice the College
Reductions or changes to the Offica for Students allocations

The College, in conjunction with its key stakeholders; develops strategies in response to the factors affecting the
local area and its funding factor to mitigate the risk. These risks are mitigated in a numbar of ways:

Funding is derlvad through a number of direct and indirect contractual arrangements

Ensuring the College is rigorous in delivering high quality education and training

Ensuring that the student experience and ability to find a positive destination is supported

Considerable focus and investment is placed on maintaining and managing key relationships with the
various funding bodies as far as possible

Ensuring the College is focused on those priorily sectars which will continue to benefit from public funding
Relevant Curriculum, leading to positive destinations

Ragular dialogue with the funding bodies and with partner universities

Growth in other income streams, value for money and efficiency reviews

2. Tuition fee policy

Tha fee assumption for FE remains at 50%. In line with the majority of other Colleges, Blackburn College will
moniter- and review tuition fees in accordance with the fee assumptions.

This risk is mitigated in a number of ways:

= By ensuring the College is rigorous in delivering high quality education and training, thus ensuring value
for money for students

Close menitoring of the demand for courses as prices change

Rebust credit control processes

An effective marketing strategy to promote the benefits of studying at the College

An attractive bursary/scholarship offer

3. Maintain adequate funding of pension liabilities

The financial statements report the share of the |ocal government pension scheme deficit on the College’s
Statement of Financial Position in line with the requirements of FRS 102

4. Failure to maintain the financial viability of the College

The College’s ESFA financial health grade for 2020/21 is autoscored as "Outstanding”. Notwithstanding that, the
cantinuing challenge to the College’s financial position remains with balancing expenditure on the student
experience with grant and tuition fee funding not linked to inflation and variations in student recruitment.

This risk is mitigated in a number of ways:

By rigorous budget setting procedures and sensitivity analysis
Regular in year budget monitoring

Fobust financial controls

Explaring ongoing procurement efficiencies

Relentless focus on costs and efficient deployment of resources

* 4 ® @ §n
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5. Ofsted and inspection

In December 2018, the Further Education and Apprenticeship provision at Blackburn College was inspected by
Ofsted and was given the grade ‘Requires Improvement’. In January 2020 a monitoring visit was undertaken to
evaluate the progress, with this monitoring visit showed that reasonable progress had been made since the 2018
inspection. In May 2021 a pilot inspection of the revised inspection framework was undertaken, as it was a pilot
no formal outcome was provided. The College continues 1o focus on the quality of teaching and learing and the
impact of the Gurriculum for our stakeholders. Leamer outcorne measures for 2019/20 and 2020/21 showed good
pragress on the journey to improve the outcomae from the Ofsted inspactions.

Key Performance Indicators

The College has a number of internal KPI's that it monitors at both Governing Body and Executive Management
levels. These include measures such as enrclments against target, retention, aftendance progress, staff
utilisation, room utilisation, financial health {as measured by the ESFA), Surplus ratio (as measured by the FE
Comrmissioner), debt against income (as measured by the FE Commissioner), overall debt levels by customer
type, creditor days, debt cover and performance against loan covenants. Assessment against a number of these
measures are included within this Strategic Report, with regular updates discussed at Board, Committes and
operational management meetings.

The College's financial health for 2020/21, as measured by the ESFA, Is 'outstanding’, with the profitability
measure of Earnings Before Interest Taxation and Depreciation of Assets (EBITDA) as outstanding. This is In line
with the Cellege's Strategic Flan.

Student achievements

FE Achievement rates incteased ovarall to 82.5% In 2020/21 from 89.5% in 2019/20, which is as a result of the
work undertaken as part of the Ofsted improvement plan.

Payment performance

The Late Payment of Commercial Debis (Interest) Act 1998 came inte farce on 1 November 1298, which requires
Colleges, in the absence of agreement to the contrary, to make payments to suppliers within 30 days of either the
provision of goods or services or the date on which the invoice was received. The target set by the Treasury for
payment to suppliers within 30 days is 95%. During the accounting year 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021, the
Collage paid 75.6% of its invaices within 30 days, with delays in the receipt of valid invoices the major contributor
to this (by valid invoice, it means with approved purchase order, sent to the Finance team). Average credit days
takan were 35. The College incurred no interest charges in respect of late payment for this year (Enil 2019/20),

Equality and diversity
Equality

The College is commitied to ensuring equality of opportunity for all who learn and work here. We respect and
value all protected characteristics including age, race, sex, gender, sexual orientation, disability, religion or belief,
gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity. We strive vigorously to remove
conditions which place people at a disadvantage and we will actively combat intolerance. This policy is resourced,
implemented and monitored on a planned basis. The College’s Single Equality Policy is published on the College’s
Intranet site.

The Ccllege publishes an Annual Equality Report and Equality Objectives every four years to ensure compliance
with the Equality Act 2010. The College undertakes eguality impact assessments on all new palicies and
procedures to ensure the infrastructure within which we operate is free fram any discrimination. Equality impact
assessments are also undertaken for existing policies and procedures on a prioritised basis.
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The College is a 'Positive about Disabled' employer and has committed to the principles and objectivas of the
‘Positive about Disabled standard’. The College considers all employment applications from disabled persons,
bearing in mind the aptitudes of the individuals concerned, and guarantaes an interview to any disabled applicant
who meets the essential critaria for the post. Where an existing employee becomes disabled, every effort is made
to ensure that employment with the college confinues. The Gollege's policy is to provide training, career
development and opportunities for promotion which, as far as possible, provide identical opportunities to those of
non-disabled employees.

The College has committed to the "Mindful Employer” initiative to assist the mental health wellbeing of staff. The
College has achieved accreditation to the Committed to Equality (C2E) standard at the gold (highest) level. The
Coliege has also implemented an updated Equalily & Diversity training programme which all staff have attended.
Refrasher training and training for new starters is carried out on an ongoing basis,

Disability equality
The College seeks to achieve the objectives set down in the Equality Act 2010:

a) As part of its accommodation strategy the College updated its access audit, An access audit was undertaken
and the resulls of this form part of our Estates strategy.

b) The Additional Learning Support team liaise with Estates team in terms of any accessibility issues identified
as part of our anticipatory duty or by students on the programme to ensure full accessibility. This includes
Personal Emergency Evacuation Procedures and any other aspects which may be buildings or eguipment
related to securs appropriate resolutions.

¢) Thereis range of specialist equipment, managed by the Additional Learning Support Service which the College
makes available for use by students which is in addition to a range of assistive technology solutions available,

d) The Pennine Lancashire Access Centre provides access to spocialist assessments available to potential and
currant HE students to enable an assessment of need and award of Disabled Student's Allowances (DSA
support} who have been approved to access DSA (this facility is part of the national network of Access Centres
and support our students and those from other Higher Education establishments). As part of the Centre’s
registration they provide access to specialist equipment inventory as specified by the Quality Assurance Group.

@) The Centre supports the development of the College's ongoing knowledge and understanding of the
developments in the field of specialist egquipment for learners with learning difficulties and/or disabilities.

f) Students at the College benefit from specialist advisory teachers, including a Teacher of the Deaf and Teacher
for Visual Impairment. The Special Educational Needs and Disabllities (SEND) and Inclusive Studies Team
employ specialists to provide in class support to promote access to education, There are a number of Academic
Learning Support Assistants who can provide a variety of support for learning.

g} There is a continuing programme of staff development to ensure the provision of a high level of appropriate
suppart for students who have learning difficulties and/or disabilities which ensures that the College meets the
requirements in the Special Educational Meeds and Disability Code of Practics as well as our Equality Duty.

h} Inclusive learning programmes are described in College prospectuses. Achievements and destinations are
recorded and published in the standard College forma,

i) Counselling and welfare services are described in the College Student Guide, which is shared with students
via Moodle together with the Complaints and Disciplinary Procedure.

In addition, the College has a Single Equality staterment that encompasses all protected groups and pledges zero
lolerance to discrimination of any kind.  Full details can be obtained from the College web site, by emailing
thehub@blackbum.ac.uk or writing to The Hub Services, Blackburn College, Beacon Centre, Blackbum, BB2
1LH.

The College also has a Single Equality Committee to monitor key metrics, identify any gaps In progress / metrics
and to work across College in supporting learners and staff.
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Trade Union Facility Time

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Reguirements) Regulations 2017 require the College to publish

information on facility time arrangements for trade union officials at the College. The information below covers the
published period of 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021;

‘Numbers of employees who were relevant FTE employee number
17 149
Percentage of time Number of employees
S : =l
1-50% 17
51-99% 0
100% 0|

 Total cost of facility time ' £38k

Total pay bill £24.1m
Parcentage of total bill spent an facility time B | 0.15%

| Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time | 100%

Events after the end of the reporting year

There were no significant post Statement of Financial Pesition avents.

Disclosure of information to auditors

The members wha held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are aware, there is
no relevant audit information of which the College’s auditors are unaware; and sach member has taken all the
staps that he or she ought to have taken to be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
College’s auditors are aware of that information,

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 15™ December 2021 and signed on its behalf

by:

1. Crslors

Lillian Croston
Chair to the Corporation
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control

The following statement is provided to onable readers of the Annual Report and Financial Statements of the
College to obtain a better understanding of its governance and legal structure. This statement covers the patiod
from 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

The College sndeavours to conduct its business:

i in accordance with the seven principles identified by the Committee on Standards in Public Life
(selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and |eadership);

ii. in full accordance with the guidance to Colleges from the Association of Colleges in The Code of
Good Governance for English Colleges ("The Code™)

In the opinion of the Govermnors, the College complies with all the provisions of *The Code”, and it has complied
throughout the year ended 31 July 2021. This opinion is based on-an internal review of compliance with “The
Code" reported to the Audit Commitiee on B June 2021 and to the Corporation Board via the minutes of the Audit
Committee meeting. The Governing Body recognises that, as a body entrusted with both public and private funds,
it has a particular duty to observe the highest standards of corporate governance at all times, In carrying out its
respansibilitias, it takas full account of “The Code” initially issued by the Association of Colleges in March 2015,
I.-_.rhEc:h it formally adopted on 3 July 2015, with the stipulation that an extansion to the normal number of terms of
office for Governors would be a matter reserved for determination by the Corporation Board having conducted a
current and future skills analysis and performance assessments of its Governors.

The College is an exempt charity within the meaning of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011. The Governors, who are
also the Trustees for the purposes of the Charities Act 2011, confirm that they have had due regard for the Charity
Commission's guidance on public benafit and that the required stalements appear elsewhers in these Financial
Statements,

The Corporation

The members who served on the Corperation during the year and up to the date of signature of this repart are
listed in the table below;

j Date of Term Date of Status of ; Attendance
Nama Appointment | of Office | Resignation | Appointment Cominiitees Served in 2020/21
o Policy & Besources
Principal and : T
D Fazal 1 Jan 2015 Eycoliicio Chief Learning & Quality, 18189
Dad E ; Governance Panel, 100%
xecutive :
= ____StudentVoice |
= ) Chair of Board; Learning 18/19
Mrs Lilian | Reappointed 31 Mar Extarnal & Quality, Governance
Croston | 12 Mar 2021 2024 Panel, Remuneration, 95%
I Student Voice
Vice Chair of Board;
Mr Paul Reappointed | 31 Mar External Chair of Policy & 1717
Levet | 12 Mar2021 | 2024 e Resources, Govemance | 4q40,
Panel, Chair of
Remuneration
Professor 31 Mar 0/9
Wagar 6 Dec 2019 12 Jul2024 External Palicy & Rasources
Ahmed 2022 ¥ 0%
Mr Mari 31 Mar i i 153414
11 Dec 2015 External Chair of Leaming &
Allanson 2022 Quality g93%
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (continued)

Data of Tarm Date of Status of S : Attendance
Name Appointment of Office Hesignation | Appeintment SRIMAES Sanad in 2020/21
BT
Kerry Baron | 11 Dec 2020 | 30 Nov 2021 Student Leaming & Quality 439
Geoff ; _ 7/8
Disloy 5Jul 2019 31 Mar 2021 | 31 Mar 2021 Staff Leaming & Quality g8
vgal 18 0ct 2019 | 31 Mar 2022 External Audit, Student Voice -
Fleming T0%
; ; 3/3
| Ram Gupta | 12 Mar2021 | 31 Mar 2024 External Learning and Quality 069
Catherine Learning and Quality, 10/13
Hill OBE 18 Oct 2019 | 31 Mar 2022 External Stadsnt Voioe -
Chris 3 ; B0
G 20 Oct 2017 | 31 Mar 2023 External Chair of Audit 0%
i 111
Michasl | aprents | 81 Mar 2021 Staff Policy & Resources 1 uizz c;
Kathryn . 2/9
Lard 16 Mar 2018 | 31 Mar 2023 External Policy & Rescurces o0e,
; 2/2
Mark Moren | 7 May 2021 31 Mar 2024 Staft Leaming and Quality 1002
]
i ; 10411
Paul Morris 1 Apr 2020 31 Mar 2023 Extarnal Policy & Hasources 91
(e}
- 04
Shru Morris | 1 Apr 2020 31 Mar 2023 | 15 Jan 2021 Extarnal Audit 0%
Glsnys g2
Pashley- 1 Apt 2020 31 Mar 2023 External Learning & Quality i
Crawford Vo
; ; 611
Arif Patel 1 Apr2020 | 31 Mar 2023 External Policy & Resources S
Folicy & Resources; 11/13
SH;?;; 18 Mar 2016 | 31 Mar 2022 External Govemance Panel: BEI o
P ¥ Remuneration =
Brooklyn | 44 pec2020 | 30 Nov 2021 Student Audit <
Spiers 20%
i , 11
Taiyab Sufi 2 Jdul 2021 31 Mar 2024 External Audit 100%
| Steve . 211
Waggott 9 MNov 2018 | 81 Mar 2023 External Puolicy & Resources 18%
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (continued)

The Governance Framework

It is the Corporation’s responsibility to bring independent judgemeant to baar on issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standards of conduct.

The Corporation is provided with regular and timely information an the overall financial perfarmance of the Callege
together with other information such as performance against recruitment targets, proposed capital expenditure,
quality matters and personnel-related matters such as health and safety and envircnmental issues. The
Corporation normally meets four times per year,

The Corperation eonducts its business through a number of Committees, Each Committee has terms of reference,
which have been approved by the Corporation. These Commiltees are Learning and Quality, Policy and
Resources, Audit, Remuneration, Gavernance Panel (Search) and Student Voice. Full minutes of all meetings,
oaxcept those deemed to be confidential by the Corporation, are avallable on the College's wabsite blackburn.ac.uk
or from the Clerk to the Corporation at the College's registered address — Blackburn College, Feilden Sireet,
Blackburn, BBZ 1LH.

The Clerk to the Corporation maintains a register of financial and persanal interests of the Governors. The register
is available for inspection al the above address.

All Governors are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties at the College's
expense and have access to the Clerk to the Corparation, who s responsible to the Board for ensuring that all
applicable procedures and regulations are complied with. The appointment, evaluation and removal of the Clerk
are matters for the Corporation as a whaole,

Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to Governers in a timely manner, prior to Board meetings.
Brisfings are provided on an ad hoc basis.

The Corporation has a strong and independent non-executive element and no individual or group dominates its
decision-making process. The Corporation considers that each of jts non-executive members is independent of
managament and free from any business or other relationship which could materially interfere with the oxarcise
of their independent judgement.

There is a clear division of responsibility in that the roles of the Chair and Accounting Officer are separate.

Since the lockdown due to COVID-18, Board and Commities meetings have been held via Microsoft Teams, with
some in person attendance where regulations allowed. All Governors have bean issued with an iPad to facilitate
paperless meetings and have been provided with training on how to use Microsoft Teams.

Appointments to the Corporation

Any new appointments to the Corporation are a matter for the consideration of the Corporation as a whole, The
Corporation has a Governance Panel, which comprises four Carporation members and one co-opted member,
which is responsible for the selection and nomination of any new member for the Corperation's consideration.
The Corporation is responsible for ensuring that appropriate training is provided as required. In 2020/21, seven
vacancies arose.

Members of the Corporation are appointed for a term of office not exceeding three years. The number of
consecutive terms of office is sel at three, but this can be waived where an appointment is made mid-term or
where itis in the best interests of the Corporation to make an appaintment for a further tarmis). As par the Gode
of Good Governance, this could be whera a member takes on a more senior role, as Chair ar Vice Chair, for
sxample.
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Corporation Performance

The Board has completed itz wark to enhance the College's Govermnance infrastructure and as agreed in the
Review of Governance, Governors have been appointed to at least one Commitiee and that where possible,
appeintments to Committess have been made in accordance with the skills mix of Governors, to make best use
of skills, knowledge and experience in decision making processes. Committee membership is considered when
new appointments to the Board are made to make bes! uss of Governors skills, knowledge and experience,

The Corporation Board agread a set of metrics to be used in the assessmant of the Board's performance al its
meeting on 7 July 2017. The Corporation again carried out an appraizal of the Chair and each Governor took part
in a Self-Assessment Review, both being considered by the Governance Panel at its meeting on 4 Octobar 2021
and to the Board at its meeting on 15 October 2021, Similar performance reviews will be undertaken for the
2021/22 academic year.

In order to further enhance Corporation performance and as part of Governor Development, a number of
presentations have been made at the Board and Committees. A calendar of Governer development/training
activities has been completed and is updated as necessary.

An intermal audit on Governance Arrangements in 2020/21 was underiaken in September 2021. The internal
audit opinion was for ‘substantial assurance” and no management actions were made as a result of the audit.

Training and development activities for members of the Corporation Board have been completed during the year.
This includes presentations at Audit Committee on a number of risk themed topics; Health and Safety Awareness
far Gavernors, Safeguarding and Prevent, and the FE White Paper updates for all Board members. Governars
have also completed individual training such as Aol Governance Finance Masterclasses, ETF Governance
Developmant Programme modules. The Chair of the Corporation Board has also complated the ETF/Said
Business School Chairs Strategic Development Programme.

The Clerk to the Corporation holds the ICSA Certificate in FE Gowvernance. During the 2020/21 academic year,
the Clerk attended numerous wehinar training events relevant to the role, including the AcC Govemance
Frofessionals' Conference and the AoC Masterclass on Good Practice in Governance in Preparing for EIF. The
Clerk also completed the ETF/Said Business School Governance Professionals’ Development Programme.

As part of the Review of Governance, the Board has considered and approved the six areas to be coverad by the
Governor Champions. These areas are Safeguarding and Special Educational Needs (SEND), Health and Safety
and Staff Welfare, Leamer Experience, Teaching, Leamning and Assessment and Equality and Diversity. The role
of the Governor Ghampions has been agreed and is a stratogic role and does not have oparational responsibility.
Champions are invited fo attend the relevant College Committees. The Corporation Board also has Curriculum
Link Governor Champions. All Governors are invited to attend the College Quality Summit mestings.

The Committess have reviewed their Terms of Beference and their performance against terms of reference; a
report was presentad to the Corporation Beard at its meeting on 2 July 2021. The Board has also continued to
review its performance against the Code of Good Governance for English Colleges and HSM: Turning Lights
Green — A Best Practice Guide for Audit Committea,

The work of the Board and its Committees has been in accordance with the relevant calendars of business and
has also included ad hoc reports as required.

Remuneration Committes

Throughout the year ended 31 July 2021, the Corporaticn’s Hemuneration Committee comprised four members
of the Corporation. In taking account the best practice identified in the Assoclation of Collages (AoC) Code of
Good Governance for English Celleges, the Vice Chair of the Corperation Board chairs this Commitiee. The
Committes’s responsibilities are to make recommendations to the Corporation on the remuneration and banefits
of the Accounting Officer and other Senior Post-Holders, including the Clerk.

Details of remuneration for these posis for the year ended 31 July 2021 are set out in nofe 7 to the financial
statements.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four members of the Corporation (excluding the Accounting Officer and Ghair)
and two co-opted members, three of whom are finance/audit specialists. The Commitiee operates in accordance
with written terms of reference approved by the Corporation. At 31 July 2021 there was one vacancy; this was
filled on 15 October 2021 with the appointee having significant audit experience:

The Audit Committee meets 4 times a year and provides a forum for reporting by the College's internal and
external auditors, who have access to the Committes for Independant discussion, without the presence of College
management.

The College’s Internal Auditors review the systems of internal control, risk management controls and governance
processes in accordance with an agreed plan of input and report their findings to management and the Audit
Committee.

Management is responsible for the implementation of agreed audit recommendations, and internal audit
undertake pericdic follow-up reviews to ensure such recommendations have been implemented.

The Audit Committee also advises the Corporation on the appointment of internal and external auditors and their
remuneration for both audit and non-audit work as well as reporting annually to the Corparation,

The Audit Committea met four times in the year to 31 July 2021. The members of the committes and their
attendance records are shown below:

Committee member Meetings attended
Chris Johnson

Brooklyn Spiers (appointed 11 December 2020)

Paul Fleming (appointed 12 March 2021)

Taiyab Sufi {(appeinted 2 July 2021)

John Whittaker (co-opted membar)

Louise Mattinson (co-opted member; resigned 24 February 2021)
Shru Morris (resigned 15 January 2021)

e o = T

Internal Control
Scope of responsibility

The Corporation is ultimately responsible for the College's systermn of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the rigk of failure to achieve
College objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstaterment
or loss.

The Corporation has delegated the day to day respansibility to the Principal and Chief Executive, as Accounting
OHicer, for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supperts the achievement of the College's policies,
aims-and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which he is personally responsible, in
accordance with the responsibilities assigned to him in the Funding Agreement between Blackburn College and
the funding bodies. The Principal and Chief Executive is also responsible for reporting to the Carporation any
material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control,

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk fo a reasonable level rather than to eliminata all risk of
fallure to achieve policies, aims and objectives, it can therefore only provide reasconable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to;

- identify and priaritise the risks to the achievement of College policies, aims and objectives,
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The purpose of the system of internal control {continued)

- o evaluate the likelihood of thase risks belng reallsed and the impact should they be realised, and
- to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The system of internal control has been in place in Blackburn College for the year ended 31 July 2021 and up to
the date of approval of the annual report and financial staternents.

Capacity to handle risk

The Corporation has reviewed the key risks to which the College is exposed, together with the operating, financial
and compliance controls that have bean implemented to mitigate those risks. The Corporation is of the view that
there iz a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the College’s significant risks that has
been in place for the year ended 31 July 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual repotts and financial
statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Audit Committee and by the Ceorporation.

The risk and control framework

The systern of internal control is based on a framework of regl;.ﬂar management information, administrative
procedures including the segregation of duties, a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

« Comprehensive annual budgeting system with an annual budget which is reviewed and agreed by the
Corporation

s Regular reviews by the Policy and Resources Committee and the Corporation of periodic and annual financial
reports, which indicate performance against foracasts {including in reforecasts during the year)

s Setting targets to measure financial and other operational perfermance

= Clearly defined capital investment control guidelines and delegated authorities to spend

* The adeption of farmal project management disciplines, where appropriate.

Blackburn College engages BSM to provide an Internal Audit service which complies with the ESFA Post 16 Audit
Code of Practice. The work of the Internal Auditors service is informed by an analysis of the risks to which the
College is exposed, and annual intemal audit plans are based on this analysis. The analysis of risks and the
internal audit plans are endorsed by the Corporation an the recommendation of the Audit Commitiee. The Internal
Auditors provide the Governing bady with an annual report on Internal Audit activity in the College, The report
includas the Internal Auditor's independent opinion on the adequacy and effectivenass of the College’s system of
risk management, controls and governance processes.

Risks faced by the Corporation

The College has a Risk Management Paolicy that has been approved by the Corporation and the Principal and is
available for all staff to ses on the College intranet. The Risk Management Plan is discussed by the Principalship
on & regular basis and is submitted to each meeting of the Audit Committes, with highlights presented to
Corporation. The Vics Principal - Finance and Corporate Services is the appointed Risk Champion for the College.
The Risk Management plan is reviewed annually by the Senior Management Team, this is to ensure that they
have a good understanding of the risks facing College, reiterate the process for identifying risks and to give the
apportunity to highlight any new risks.

The principal risks, government funding, financial viability and Ofsted / Inspection as identified in the Strategic
Repert are both noted as key risks in the Colleges Hisk Register.
Control weaknesses identified

A total of six Internal Audits plus a follow-up audit were undertaken during the year. All reports wera considerad
by the Audit Committes. No significant areas of weaknasses or failures were identified.

Responsibilities under funding agreements

The Corporation has met its confractual responsibilities under its funding agreements and contracts with the
ESFA, Each year a Regularity Audit, which tests compliance, is undertaken by management, reviewed by Audit
Committee and then audited by the external auditors.
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Statement from the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has advised the board of Governors that the Corporation has an effective framework for
govamance and risk management in place. The Audit Committee believes the Corporation has effective internal
controls in place.

The specific areas of work undertaken by the Audit Committea in 2020/21 and up to the date of the approval of
the financial statements are;

= Assessed the pedormance of the External and Iniernal Audit function

» Received External Audit report from the External Auditors and considered the audit outcomes for onward
recommendations to the Board

= Considered a scope of work for the Intemal Auditors for recommeandation to the Board. The agread areas
baing Gowvernance — Student Target Setting and Tracking {ProMonitor), Governance Framework,
Academic Quality Framewark, Key Financial Controls — Student Loans and Advance Loans
Administration Framework, Health and Safety Framework, Human Resources — Performance
Management; Follow up from prior yvear recommendations

+ Raceived Internal Audit reports on the agreed scope of work, considered the outcomes and maenitored
management action against those outcomas and recommendations

+« (Considered the final outcome of 3 whistleblowing investigations received in 2018-19

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Cfficer, the Principal and Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal contral. His review of the effectiveness of the system of internal contral is informed by: -

= The work of the Internal Auditors:

# The work of the Executive Team within the College who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework; and

» Comments made by the College’s external auditors and the reporiing accountant for regularity
assurance in their management letiers and other reports.

The Accounting Officer has been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control by the Audit Committee which oversees the work of the internal auditors and other
sources of assurance, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is
in place,

The Executive Team raceivas reports on key performance and risk indicators and considers possible control
issues brought to their attention by early warning mechanisms, which are embeadded within the departments and
reinforced by risk awareness training. The Executive Team and the Audit Committee also receive regular reports
from Internal Audit and other sources of assurance, which include recommendations for improvemant.

The Audit Committee's role in this area is confined to a high-level raview of the arrangements for intermal control.
The Corporation's agenda includes a regular item for consideration of risk and control and receives reports thereon
from the senior management and Exscutive teams and the Audit Committee. The emphasis is on obtaining the
relevant degree of assurance and not merely reporting by exception.

At its meeting on 15 October 2021, the Corporation carried out the annual assessment for the year ended 31 July
2021 by considaring documentation from the Executive Team and Internal Audit, and taking acceount of events
since 31 July 2021.

Baszed on the advice of the Audit Committee and the Accounting Officer, the Corporation is of the opinion that tha
College has an adequate and effective framawork for governance, risk management and control, and has fulfilled
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its statutory responsibility for “the effective and efficient use of resources, the solvency of the institution and the
body and the safeguarding of their assets”,

Approved by the members of the Corporation on 15" December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

1, G boy Py fad

-

Lillian Croston Dr Fazal Dad

Chair to the Corporation Principal and Chief Executive
(Accounting Oifficer)
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Governing body’s statement on the College’s regularity, propriety and compliance with
funding body terms and conditions of funding

The Corporation has considered its responsibility to notify the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) af
material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of funding, under the College’s
grant funding agreement and contracts with the ESFA. As part of its consideration, the Corporation has had due
regard to the requiremants of the grant funding agreements and contracts with the ESFA.

We confirm on behalf of the Corporation, that after due enquiry, and to the best of our knowledge, we are able to
identify any material irreguiar or improper use of funds by the College, or material non-compliance with the terms
and conditions of funding under the College’s grant funding agreements and contract with the ESFA, er any other
public funder.

We confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discoverad
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the ESFA.

Approved by the members of the Corporation on 15% December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

L. Crbey, ot .

Lillian Croston Dr Fazal Dad
Chair to the Corporation Principal and Chief Executive
(Accounting Officer)
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The membars of the Corporation are requirad to present audited financial statements for each financial year.

Statement of responsibilities of the members of the Corporation

Within the terms and conditions of the College’s grant funding agreements and contracts with ESFA and any other
relevant funding body, the Corporation — through its Accounting Officer — Is reguired to prepare financial
statements and an operating and financial review for each financial year in accordance with the Statement of
Recommended Practice — Accounting for Further and Higher Education, ESFA's College accounts direction and
the UK's Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Collage and its surplus / deficit of income over expenditure for that period.

In prepating the financial statements, the Corporation is required to:

s select suitable accounting policies and apply them censistently;

» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

¢ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

e assess whether the corporation iz a going concern, noting the key supperting assumptions gualifications or
mitigating actions as appropriate; and

s prepare financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate o assume that the Collage
will continue in operation.

The Corparation is also reguired to prepare a Strategic Heport which describes what itis trying to do and how it
is going about it, including the legal and administrative status of the College.

The Corporation is responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable aocuracy,
at any time, the financial position of the College and which enable it to ensure that the financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the relevant legislation including the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 and
Charities Act 2011 and other relevant accounting standards. it is responsible for taking steps that are reasonably
open to it to safeguard assets of the College and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The maintenance and integrity of the College website is the responsibility of the Corporation; the work carried out
by auditors does not Involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility
for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since thay ware initially presented on the
website. Lagislation in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Membars of the Corporation are responsible for ensuring that expenditure and income are applied for the
purposes intended by Parliament and that the financial transactions conform o the authorities that govern them.
In addition, they are responsible for ensuring that funds from the ESFA are used only in accordance with the
ESFA's grant funding agreements and contracts and any other conditions that may be prescribed fram time fo
time. Members of the Corporation must ensure that there are appropriate financial and management controls in
place to safeguard public and other funds and ensure they are used properly, In addition, Members of the
Corporation are responsible for securing economical, efficient and effective management of the College’s
resources and expenditure, so that the benefits that should be derived from the application of public funds from
the ESFA are not put at risk.

Approved by order of the members of the Corparation on 15th Dacember 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Lillian Croston
Chair to the Corporation
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BLACKBURN COLLEGE

Opinion on the financial statements
In our opinion, the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the College’s affairs as at 31 July 2021 and of the
College’s income and expenditure, gains and losses, changes in reserves and cash flows for
the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice.

We have audited the financial statements of Blackburn College (“the College”) for the year ended 31
July 2021 which comprise statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in reserves,
statement of financial position, statement of cash flows and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) “ISAs (UK)”) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the College in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the board members’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the College’s ability
to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the board members with respect to going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the financial report, other than the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The members are responsible for the other
information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except
to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information including the Strategic Report, Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control,
Statement of regulatory, propriety & compliance and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
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misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Education and Skills Funding Agency (“ESFA”) and
Office for Students (“OfS”)

In our opinion, in all material respects:

e Funds from whatever source administered by the College for specific purposes have been
properly applied to those purposes and managed in accordance with relevant legislation.

e Funds provided by the OfS and the Education and Skills Funding Agency have been applied
in accordance with the relevant terms and conditions

e The requirements of the OfS’s Accounts Direction (OfS 2019.41) have been met.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the OfS requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

e The College’s grant and fee income, as disclosed in the note to the accounts, has been materially
misstated.

e The College’s expenditure on access and participation activities for the financial year has been
materially misstated.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Post-16 Audit Code of
Practice issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency requires us to report to you if, in our

opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept;

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations required for our audit.

Responsibilities of Members

As explained more fully in the statement of responsibilities of the members of the corporation set out
on page 22, the members are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the members determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the members are responsible for assessing the College’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the members either intend to liquidate the College or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect
of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

Based on our understanding of the College and the sector in which it operates, we identified that the
principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations are related to their registration with the
Office for Students ("OfS) and their ongoing conditions of registration, and we considered the extent
to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the Financial Statements or their continued
operation. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial
statements such as compliance with the Companies Act, the OfS Accounts Direction and tax
legislation. Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with
these laws and regulations to enquiry of the Board and other management and inspection of
regulatory and legal correspondence if any.

We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial
statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were
related to posting inappropriate journal entries to manipulate financial results and management bias in
accounting estimates.

The audit procedures to address the risks identified included:

- Reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit
reports and reviewing correspondence with HMRC and relevant regulators to identify any
actual or potential frauds or any potential weaknesses in internal control which could result in
fraud susceptibility.

- Discussions with management, including consideration of known or suspected instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud, including direct representation from the
Accountable Officer.

- Challenging assumptions made by management in their significant accounting estimates in
particular in relation to defined benefit pension liability, provision against debtors and useful
life of the tangible assets.

- In addressing the risk of fraud, including the management override of controls and improper
income recognition, we tested the appropriateness of certain manual journals, reviewed the
application of judgements associated with accounting estimates for the indication of potential
bias and tested the application of cut-off and revenue recognition.

- Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted from staff
members with privilege access rights, journals posted by key management, journals posted
during the period and journals posted after the year end.

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements, recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher
than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment
by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations or through collusion. There are inherent limitations in the
audit procedures performed and the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is
from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we are to
become aware of it.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities . This description
forms part of our auditor’s report.

In addition, we also report to you whether income from funding bodies, grants and income for specific
purposes and from other restricted funds administered by the College have been properly applied only
for the purposes for which they were received and whether income has been applied in accordance
with the Statutes and, where appropriate, with the Terms and Conditions of Funding with the OfS.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Corporation of the College, as a body, in accordance with the Further
& Higher Education Act 1992. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
College’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the College and the members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

DocuSigned by:
EELEN ENOWLES

DAED9B91914A4A7 ...

Helen Knowles (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
Manchester

20 December 2021

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number
0C305127).
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To: The Corporation of Blackburn College and the Secretary of State for Education acting through the
Education and Skills Funding Agency

Reporting accountant’s assurance report on regularity

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 21 September 2021 and further to the requirements
and conditions of funding in ESFA's grant funding agreements and contracts we have carried out an engagement
to obtain limited assurance about whether anything has come to our attention that would suggest that in all material
respacts the expenditure disbursed and income received by Blackburn College during the periad 1 August 2020
to 31 July 2021 have not been applied to the purposes identified by Pardiament and the financial transactions do
not conform to the authorities which govem them.

The framewaork that has been applied Is set out in the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice (the Code) issued by ESFA.
In line with this framewaork, our work has specifically not considered income received from the main funding grants
generated through the Individualised Learner Record returns, for which ESFA has other assurance arrangements
in place.

This tepart is made solaly to the corporation of Blackburn College and ESFA inaccordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the corporation of Blackburn College
and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose, To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the corporation of Blackburm
Callege and ESFA for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Blackburn College and the reporting accountant

The corporation of Blackburn College is responsible, under the requirements of the Further & Higher Education
Act 1992, subsequent legistation and related regulations and guidance, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed,
and income received, is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform
to the authorities which govern them.

Qur responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with out engagemant letter and the
requiremants of the Code. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work
which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1
August 2020 to 31 July 2021 have not baen applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them,

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Code issued by ESFA. We perdormed a limited assurance
engagemant as defined in that framework:

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as fo abtain infarmation and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative cenclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently doas not enahble us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accardingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity of the college’s
income and expenditure. The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

¢ Documentation and walkthrough of relevant controls on significant transaction streams to assess the
adequacy of design of relevant cantrols and whether they appear to have been implemanted;

+ Review of the boeks and records of the Corporation, along with associated minutes and registers as
appropriate for matters relevant to the regularity requirernents;
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Reporting accountant’s assurance report on regularity (continued)

e« BRaview of the Corporation's completed Self-assessment Questionnaire (Annex C of the Post-16 Audit
Code of Practice) for the Corporation's responses and supparting évidencea to each of the regularity
requirements;

= Testing of material income streams for matters relevant to the regularity requirements;

s Testing of specific arsas required to provide a limited assurance opinion, including but not limited to,
Learner Support Funds and Governors' and Senior Management Team’s expenses,

Conclusion
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income recaived during the period 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021 has not been-applied

to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conferm to the authorities which govem
them.

DocuSigned by:
EELEN ENOWLES

DAED9B91914A4A7 ...

BDO LLP

Chartered Accountants
Manchester

Maie: 20 December 2021

BDO LLP iz a Limited Liability Partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number 0C305127)
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 July 2021

Motes

Income

Funding body grants

Tuition fees and education contracts
Other grants and contracts

Other income

Investment income

L B4 B S

Total income

Expenditure

Staff costs

Restructuring costs

Cther oparating expenses
Depreciation

Interest and other finance costs

e R

Total expenditure

Surplus / (Deficit) before other gains and losses

Surplus on disposal of assets

Surplus / (Deficit) before tax

Taxation 17

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year

Actuarial gain / {lo=s) in respect of pensions

schemes &3

Total Comprehensive income / (expense) for the year

All items of income and expenditure relate to continuing activities.

The notes on pages 33 fo 54 form part of these linancial statements
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2021 2020
£'000 £'000
21,915 20,238
12,045 13,122
Pt B4
1,963 2157
a3 55
36,724 36,416
23,318 24,275
220 447
8,792 7,683
3,086 3,141
1,147 1,135
35,563 36,681
161 (265)

i
168 (265)
168 {265)
3,601 {9.230)
3,769 (9,495)




Statement of Changes in Reserves

Balance at 1 August 2019

(Deficity  from  the  Statement  of

Comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive income (Pension
defined benefit adjustment, as per note 23)

Transfers betwaeen revaluation and income
and expenditure reserves

Total comprehensive expense for the
year

Balance at 31 July 2020

Sumplus  from  the  Statement  of

Comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive income ({Pension
defined benefit adjusiment, as per note 23)

Transfers betweaen revaluation and income
and expenditure reserves

Total comprehensive income for the
vear

Balance at 31 July 2021

Q2

xpondiure  Revaluation  Restrcted Tota
reserve 000 £000 £°000
£'000
9,181 2,480 60 11,721
(265) - . (265)
(9,230) - - (9,230)
129 (129) ) -
(9,366) (129) 2 (9,495)
(185) 2,351 60 2,226
168 - i 168
3,601 - - 3,601
129 (129) a :
3,898 (129) - 3,768
3,713 2,222 60 5,995

The notes on pages 33 ta 54 form part of these financial statements
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 July 2021

Notes 2021 2020
£°000 £'000
Mon Current Assets
Tangible fixed assots iz 50.315 52,350
Endowment asseats 14 60 60
50,375 52,419
Current assets
Trade debtors and other receivables 15 1,703 2,157
Cash and cash equivalents 20 13,286 9 454
14,989 11,671
Less: Creditors - amounts falling due within one year 15 (7.205) {6,780)
Met current assels 7,784 4,831
Total assets less current liabilities 58,158 57,250
Craditors - amounts falling due after more than one year 17 (23.054) (24,423)
Provisions
Deafined banefit obligations 23 (27.619) (29,076)
Other provisions 18 (1,491) {1,525)
MNet assels 5,995 2,226
Restricted reserves
Income and expenditure account — Endowment reserve 60 &0
Unrestricted reserves
lncome and expendiiure account - unrestricted 3,713 (185)
Ravaluation reserve 2,222 2,351
Total unrestricted reserves 5,935 2,166
Total reserves 5.995 2,226

The financial statements on pages 33 to 54 were approved and authorised for issue by the Corparation on 151
December 2021 and were signed an its behalf on that data by,

f“ @ L{r7 77 "’ﬁf’%’“’

Lillian Croston Dr Fazal Dad
Chair te the Corporation Principal and Chief Executive
{Accounting Officer)

The notes on pages 33 fo 54 fanm part of these financial slatements
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Statement of Cash Flows
Far the year ended 31 July 2021

Cash flow from operating activities

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year

Adjustment for non-cash items

Depreciation

Decrease / (Increase) in debtors

Increase | (Decrease) in creditors due within one year
Decrease in creditors due after one year
{Decrease) / Increasea in provisions

Pensions costs less contributions payable
Adjustment for investing or financing activities
Invastment income

Interest payable

Profit on sale of fixed assets

Met cash inflow from aperating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Froceeds on sale of fixed assets
Irvestmeant incame

Payments made to acguire fixed assets

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid
Hepayments of amounts borrowed

Increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year

Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
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Motes

20

20

(D asiieum

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
168 (265)
3,086 3,141
454 {178)
425 (1,224)
(653) (852)
(34) 16
2,144 1,932
(33) (55)
671 722

(7 "
6,221 3,239
F g

33 55
(1,042) (320)
{1,002) (265)
(671) (722)
(716) (716)
(1,387) (1,438)
3,832 1,536
9,454 7,918
13,286 0454
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Statement of accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistantly in dealing with items which are considerad
material in relation to the financial statements.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Siatement of Recommended Practice:
Accounting for Further ard Higher Education 2018 (the 2018 FE HE SORP), the ESFA College Accounts Diraction
for 2020 fo 2021 and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 — "The Financial Reporting Stancard
applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of lrefand” (FRS 102). The College is a public benefit entity and
has therefore applied the relevant public benetit requirements of FRS 102.

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimatas. It also requires management fo exercise judgement In applying the College's accounting policies.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statemants are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.
Going Concern

The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance are
set out in the Strategic Report. The financial position of the College, its cashflow, liguidity and borrowings are
describad in the financial staterments and accompanying notes.

The Callege currently has £11.6m borrowings with bankers, of which £9.5m is loan outstanding on a 25-year term
loan running until July 2038 and £2.2m is loan outstanding on 25-year term loan running to 2034. Tha College
has a further £E6m revolving credit facility with terms running to August 2022, At 31 July 2021 £0.0m of this
revolving credit faciity was drawn (£0.0m at 31 July 2020}.

To ensure financial stability the College operates an ongoing cost reduction and efficiehcy review as part of
Business Planning (planning for the year) and Performance Monitoring (during the year). These reviews allow the
Coliege to be responsive to the changing economic enviranment in regpect of COVID, Brexit, student recruitment
and changes in Government policy and associated grant funding.

The College's forecasts and financial projections indicate that it will be able to aperate within this existing facility
and covenants for the foresesahble future.

Accordingly, the College has a reasonable expectation that it has adeguate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future, and for this reason has continued to adopt the going concern basis in the
preparation of its financial statements.

Recognition of income

Revente grant funding

Government revenue grants include funding body recurrent grants and other grants and are accounted for under
the accruals model as permitted by FRS 102. Funding body recurrent grants are measurad in ling with best
estimates for the period of what is receivable and depend on the particular income stream involved. Any under
achievament for the Adult Education Budgel s adjusted for and reflacted in the level of recurrent grant recognised
in the income and expenditure account. The final grant income is normally determined with the coneclusion of the
yaar end reconcillation procass with the funding body following the accounting period end, and the results of any
funding audits. 16-19 leamer funding is not normally subject to reconciliation and is therefore not subject to
contract adjustments.
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College

MNotes to the Financial Statements (continued)
1. Statement of accounting policies (continued)

The recurrent grant from Office for Students represents the funding allocations attributable to the current financial
year and is credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Incoma.

Grants (including research grants) from non-government sources are recognised (n Income when the College is
entitled to the income and perormance related conditions have been met. Income received in advance of
performance related conditions being met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the Statement of
Financial Position and relaasad to Income as the conditions are mat,

Coropavirus Job Retention Scheme grant

Payments received from the government for furloughed employees are a form of grant. This grant money is
receivable as compensation for expenses already incurred, and whare this is not in raspect of future related costs,
is recognised in income in the period in which it becomes receivable and the related expense incurred.

Capital grant funding

Government capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognised in income over the expected
useful life of the asset, under the accruals model as permitted by FRS 102, Other capital grants are recognised
in income when the College is entitled to the funds subject to any performance related conditions being met.
Income received in advance of parformance related conditions being met is recognised as deferred income within
creditars on the Statement of Financial Position and released to income as conditions are met.

Fee income

Income from tuition fees is stated gross of any expenditure which is not a dizcount and is recognised in the period
for which it is received and includes all fees payable by students or their sponsors. Rebates and discounts are
offered in exceptional circumstances, as approved by the Exacutive Team.

fnvestment income

All income fram short-term deposits is credited to the Income and expenditure account in the period in which it is
eamed on a receivable basis. Income from restricted endowment funds is not expended in accordance with the
restrictions of the endowment in the period, it is transfarred from the Statament of Comprehensive Income to
accumulated income within endowments funds.

Agency arrangemernts

The College acts as an agent in the collection and payment of cerain discretionary support funds. Related
payments received from the funding bodies and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the
income and expenditure of the College whara the College is exposed ta minimal risk or enjoys minimal economic
benefit related to the transaction.

Accounting for post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits to employees of the College are principally provided by the Teachers' Pension Schame
(TPE) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).

Teachers' Pensfon Scherme (TPS)

The TRS is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions
over employees’ working lives with the College in such a way that the pension cost Is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by qualified actuaries on
the basis of valuations using a prospective benefit method.

The TPS is a multi-employet scheme and there Is insufficient Information available to use defined benefit
aecounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution plan and the contributions recognised as an
expense in the income statement in the pariods during which services are rendared by employess.

Loeal Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

The LGPS is a funded scheme. The assets of the LGPS are maeasured using closing fair values. LGPS liabilitios
are measurad using the projected unit credit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high guality
corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least

Page 34 of 54



f;\ﬁp Blackburn
U College
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. Statement of accounting policies (continued)

triennially and are updated at each Statement of Financial Position date. The amounts charged to operating
surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

and comprises the Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme asseis,
calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference betwaen the interest income on the scheme assetsand the actual
return on the scheme assets is recognised in interest and other finance costs,

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in actuarial gains and losses in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Short term employment benefits

Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) are recognised as an
expense in the year in which the employees render service to the College. Any unused benefits are accrued and
measured as the additional amount the College expacts to pay as a result of the unused entitiement.

Enhanced pensions

The actual cost of any enhanced ongeoing pension to a former member of staff is paid by the College annually. An
estimate of the expected future cost of any enhancement to the ongeoing pension of a former member of staff is
charged in full to the College’s income in the year thal the member of staff retires. In subsequent years a charge
iz made to provisions in the Statement of Financial Position using the enhanced pension spreadshest provided
by the funding bodies.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Certain items of fixed assets that had been revalued to fair value on or prior to the date of transition to the
2019 FE HE S0RP, are measured on the basis of deemed cost, being the revalued amount at the data of that
revaluation.

The cost of tangible fixed assets includes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to
bringing the asset to its working condition for Its intended purpose.

Land and buildings

Freehold buildings are depreciated on a straight line basis over their expected useful lives as follows:

Harrison Centre — 10 to 40 yoars

Beacon Centre — 5 to 40 years

Construction Centre — 50 years

Elizabeth Building — 80 years

University Centre — 5 to 40 years

Regional Automotive Technology Hub — 5 to 40 years
Sixth Form Centre— 5 to 40 years

Blackburn Spaorts and Leisure Centre - 5 to 40 years
Futures Centre - 5'to 40 years

Victoria Building - 25 to 40 years

Freshold land is not depreciated as it is considered to have an infinite useful life.
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1. Statement of accounting policies {continued)

Freehold buildings are depreciated over their expected useful economic life to the Caollege of between & and 50
years. The College has a policy of depreciating major adaptations to buildings aver the period of their useful
ecanomic life of between 5 and 50 years.

Where land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific grants, they are capitalised and depreciated as
above. The related grants are credited to a deferred income account within craditors, and ara released to the

income and expenditure account over the expected useful econemic life of the related asset on a systemalic basis
consistent with the depreciation policy. The deferred income is allocated between creditors due within one year
and those due after more than one year. Where freehold land is acquired with the aid of specific grants, the valua
of the grant received is deducted from the cost of the land.

A review for impairmant of a fixed asset was carried out and no concarns dantified, If events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amaount of any fixed asset may not be recoverable.

Any plant and machinefy relating to buildings is shown separately from land and buildings in note 12 and is
depreciated over its expected useful economic life to the College of between 10 and 40 years.

On adoption of FRS 102, the College followed the transitional provision o retain the book value of land and
buildings, which were revaiued as at 1 August 2014, as deemed cost but not to adopt a policy of revaluations of
these properties in the future.

Assets under conistruction

BAssets under construction are accounted for at cost, based on thevalue of architects’ certificates and other direct
costs, Incurred to 31 July. They are not depreciated until they are brought into use.

Subsequent expendifure on existing fixed assets

Where significant expenditure is incurred on tangible fixed assets it is charged to the Statement of Comprehansive
Income in the period it is incurred, unless it increasas the future benefits to the Coliege, in which case it is
capitalised and depreciated on the relevant basis.

Equipment

Equipment costing less than £1,000 per individual iter is recognised as expenditure in the period of acquisition.
All other equipment is capitalised at cost.

Capitalised equipment and building works are depraciated over their useful economic life (UEL) as follows:

Plant and Machinery= Up to 40 years on a straight-line-basis, dependent upon UEL
Building adaptaticns- Up to 10 years on a straight-line basis, dependent upon UEL
Building components- Up to 25 years on a straight-line basis, dependent upan UEL
Motor vehicles- 5 years on a straight-line basis

General equipmeant- 5 years on a straight-line basis

Computer equipment- 4 years ot 7 years on a straight-line basis, dependent upon UEL

Where equipment is acquired with the aid of specific grants, they are capitalised and depreciated as above. The
related grants are credited to a deferred income account within creditars, and are released to the income and
expenditure account over the expected useful econemic life of the related asset on a systematic basis consistent
with the depreciation policy. The deferred Income |s allocated between creditars due within one year and those
due aftar mare than one year,
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1. Statement of accounting policies (continued)

A review for Impairment of a fixed asset is carfed out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
cartying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.

Heritage assels

Inherited equipment has been depreciated on a straight-ling basis over its useful economic life and s now fully
depreciated.

Borrowing costs

Barrowing costs, including when they are directly attributable to the construction of land and buildings, are
recognised as expenditure in the peried in which they are incurred.

Leased assels

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the |ease term to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Any lease premiums or incentives relating to leases signed after 1 August 2014 are
spread over the minimum lease tarm.

Leasing agreements which transfer to the College substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership of an asset
are treated as finance leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised initially al the fair value of the leased asset {ar, if lower, the
present value of minimum lease payments) at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor
ls included in the Statement of Financial Pesition as a finance lease obligation. Assets held under finance leases
are included in tangible fixed assets and depreciated and assessed for impairment losses in the same way as
owned assets.

Minimum lease payments are appertionad between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liahility, The finance charges are allocated over the period of the lease in proportion to the capital element
outstanding.

Investments and endowment assets

Investments are carried at historical cost plus incidental expenses less any provision for impairment in their value.
Current asset Investments are included in the Statement of Financial Position &t the lower of their original cost
and net realisable value. Investmenis that form part of endowment assets are included in the Statement of
Financial Position at market value.

Inventories

Inventories are written off to the Statement Of Comprehensive Income account in the year of purchase.

Cash and cash equivalents

Gash includes cash in hand, depesits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are repayable on demand if
they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty.

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily converlible to known amounts of cash

with insignificant risk of change in valus, An investment qualifies as a cash equivalent when it has maturity of 3
months or less from the date of acquisition.
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1. Statement of accounting policies {continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilites and equity are classified accerding to the substance of the financial instrument's contractual
obligations, rather than the financial instrument's legal form.

All loans, investments and short term deposits held are classified as basic financial instruments in accordance
with FRS 102, These instruments are initially recorded at the transaction price less any costs (historical cost).
FBS 102 requires that basic financial Instruments are subseguently measured at amortised cost, however the
College has calculated that the difference between the historical cost and amortised cost basis is not matatial and
so these financial instruments are stated on the Statement of Financial Pesition at historical cost. Loans and
investments that are payable or receivable within one year are not discounted.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the financial year with all resulting exchange differences being taken to the income
and expenditure account in the periad in which they arise.

Taxation

The College is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010 and therefore it
meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the College is
potentially exempt from taxation in respect of ihcome or capital gains received within categories covered by
sections 478-4B8 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992,
to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

The College is partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can anly recover around 6% of the VAT
charged on its inputs. Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs of such inputs and added to the cost
of tangible fixed assets as appropriate, where the inputs thamselves are tangible fixed assets by nature.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Frovisions are recognised when:

= the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event(s)
+ itis prabable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation, and
« areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the abligation

Whare tha effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle the obligation
is recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a
finance cost in the Statement of Camprehensive Income in the period it arises.

A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible obligation whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the College.
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measurad reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position but are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Liquid resources

Investments in short ferm deposits include sums on shori-term deposits with recognised banks and building
societles and government sacurities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. Statement of accounting policies {continued)

Agency arrangements

Related payments received from the funding bodies and subsequent disbursements to studants are excluded
from the income and expenditure of the College where the College is exposed to minimal risk or enjoys minimal
economic benefit related to the transaction.

Judgements in applying accounting policies

In preparing these financial statements, management have made the following judgemants:

Determine whether leases entered Into by the College either as a lessor or a lesses are operating or finance
lzases. These decisions depend on an assessmant of whether the risks and rewards of ownership have bean
transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a lease by lease basis,

Determine whether there are indicatars of impairment of tangible assets, including goodwill. Factars taken into
consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viakility and expected future financial
performance of the asset and where it is a component of a larger cash-generating unit, the viability and
expected future parformance of that unit.

Olher key sources of estimation uncertainiy

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their useful lives taking into
account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed
annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In re-assessing asset lives, factors such as
tachnological innovation and maintenance programmaeas are taken into account. Residual value assessmenis
consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values.

Local Govemment Pension Scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
tactors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (inceme) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 23, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermare, a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuardal valuation pedformed at 31 March 2019
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions fiability at 31 July 2021, Any differences between the
figuras derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pension fiability.
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2. Funding body grants

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Recurrent grants
Education and Skills Funding Agency - Adult 3,386 3,454
Education and Skills Funding Agency — 16-19 15,189 14,343
Grant income from the Office for Students 589 576
Specific grants
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Grant 912 877
ESFA Condition Fund 823 -
Haleases of govarnmeant capital grants; Education and Skills Funding Agency 569 498
Releases of capital grants: Office for Students (Of5) 447 480
Total funding body grants 21,915 20,238

As an OFS registered College a single table is required to show grant and fee income for courses at Leve! 4 and
above. The table below summarises this information,; which forms part of the disclosures in note 2 and 3;

2021 2020

£'000 £'000
Recurrent grants
Grant income from the Office for Students 589 576
Releases of capital grants: Office for Students 447 490
Fees for HE lgan supported courses 9834 10,984
Total recurrent OfS grants 10,870 12,060
3. Tuition fees and education contracis

2021 2020

£'000 £'000
Adult education fees H 85
Apprenticaship feas and contracts 1,761 1,568
Fees for FE lean supperted courses 419 474
Fees for HE loan supported courses 9,834 10,994
International students fees - 1
Total tuition fees and education contracts 12,045 13,122
4. Other grants and contracts

2021 2020

£'000 £'000
European Commission grants 102 B5
Other grants and coniracts 439 571
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant 227 208
Total Other grants and contracts 768 844
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5. Other income

Catering

Other income generating activities: full cost provision
Teaching related activities

Exam and registration cost recovery

Premises income

Support and admin activities

Miscellansous incoma

Total Other income

6. Investment income
Interest receivable

Total Investment income

7. Staff costs

Blackburn
@CDHEQEF

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
492 526
894 1,018
26 98

2 14

a3 44
298 241
188 218
1,963 2,157
2021 2020
000 2000
a3 55
33 55

The average number of persons ({including Key Management Personnel) employed by the Collega during the

year, doscribad as full-time equivalents (FTE), was:

Teaching staff
Mon-teaching staff

Total

Wages and salaries
Social Security costs
Othar pansion costs:Employer contributions

:Pension defined liability charge {net of interest payable in note 9)

Contracted out staffing services

Restructuring costs — contractual

Total staff costs
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2021 2020
FTE FTE
356 369
227 245

5823 614
2021 2020
£°000 £°000
16,750 17 583
1477 1,557
3,038 3,164
1,743 1,640
23,008 23,844
312 331
23,318 24 275
220 447
23,538 24,722
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7. Staff costs (continued)

Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the College and are represented by the Senior Post Holders and College Executive
Team which comprises the Principal and Chief Executive, Vice Principal - Finance and Corporate Services, Dean
of Higher Education {later replaced by Assistant Principal Higher Education), two Assistant Principal Teaching
and Learning, Assistant Principal Student Support and Engagement, Director of Business Development and
External Engagement and Clerk to the Corporation.

Emoluments of Key Management Personnel, Accounting Officer and other higher paid staff

2021 2020
The number of key management personnel including the Accounting Officer was: S 6

The number of key management personnel and other staff whe received annual emeoluments, excluding pension
contributions and employer's national insurance but including benefits in kind, in the following ranges was;

Key management

personnel i aiat]
2021 2020 2021 2020
Mo. Mo. Mo. Mo.
£50,000 to £55,000 p.a. = i = -
£55,001 to 860,000 p.a. 1 i = =
£85,001 to £70,000 p.a. 4 L . 4
£70,001 to £75,000 p.a. 2 1 : 1
E80.001 io £85,000 p.a. - i i ;
£95 001 to £100,000 p.a. b 1 5 z
£105,001 to £110,000 p.a. = 1 ) -
£110,001 to £115,000 p.a: i 4 = =
£145,001 to £150,000 p.a. - 1 - -
E150,001 to £155,000 p.a. 1 - - 2
9 6 - 5

During the year the College Executive Team membership was updated, with Assistant Principals moving from
attendess to members. As can be seen in the information above, the total higher paid staff reduced from 11 10 9.
The disclosure above is based upen headeount during the year and it should be noted that in 2020 that 2 people
held the senior leadership position within Higher Education. The total positions in Key Management Personnel
was 8. Overall higher paid management costs have reduced. '

Key Management Personnel emoluments are made up as follows:

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Salaries — gross of salary sacrifice and waived emoluments 662 538
Pension contributions 136 g8
Total KMP emoluments 798 626
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7. Staff costs (continued)

There were no amaounts due to key management personnel that were waived in the year, nor any salary sacrifice
‘arrangements in place that are not HMRC approved.

The above emoluments include the amounts paid to Principal and Chief Executive who is the Accounting Officer
position through the academic year (who is also the highest paid officer) of:

2021 2020
£000 £'000
Salaries 153 150
Pension contributions as a5

Tha governing body has adopted AoC’s Senior Staff Remunoration Code in July 2019 and will assess payin line
with its principles in future. The remuneration package of those staff designated as Senior Post Holders; including
the Principal and Chief Executive, Is subject to annual review by the Remuneration Gommittes of the Govarning
Body who use benchmarking information to provide abjective guidance. The Principal and Chief Executive reports
to the Chair of Corporation who undertakes an annual review of their performance against the College’s overall
objectives using both gualitative and quantitative measures of performance.

Relationship of Principal and Chief Executive pay and remuneration expressed as a multiple;

2021 2020
£'000 £°000
Frincipal's basic salary as a multiple of the median of all staff 513 514
Principal and CEO's total remuneration as a multiple of the median of all staft 5.28 5.45

There was no Compensation for loss of office paid to former key management personnel.

The members of the Corporation other than the Acceunting Officer and the staff members did not receive any
payment from the College other than the reimbursement of travel and subsistence expenses and costs far any
specific courses incurred in the course of their duties.

8, Other operating expenses

2021 2020

£'000 £°000
Teaching direct costs 63D B54
Payments for HE Course validation 873 1,056
Bursary suppart for learners 400 A1B
Teaching support costs 1,465 1,468
Administration and central services 1.613 1,582
Utilities, rent and insurance 1,031 o047
Premise maintenance 947 558
Premise maintenance, linked to ESFA Condition Fund grant in note 2 821 -
Examination fees B35 79
Fees for subcontracted income 107 208
Total Other operating expenses 8,792 7.683
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8. Other operating expenses (cont.)

Other operating expenses include: ,f.gﬁ; Ez,gﬁg
Auditors’ remuneration
- financial statements audit 33 a4
VAT advisory services - -
- Internal audit 25 25
Profit on disposal of equipment 7 -
Hire of plant and machinery — operating leases 1 1
9. Interest and other finance costs
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Cn bank loans and other loans:
Repayable wholly or partly in more than five years 671 722
671 722
Met interast on defined pension liability (Note 23) 456 383
Enhanced pension costs 20 40
Total Interest and other finance costs 1,147 1,135

10. Access and participation spending

The total of the approved expenditure in our Access and Participation Plan for the year ended 31 July 2021 was
£1.64m, the actual spend was £1.5m and a breakdown is shown below, Details of the approved plan can be found
at https:/fapis.officeforstudents.org.uk/accessplansdownloads/2024/BlackburnCollege APP_2020-
21_W1_10000747 pdf

2021 2020

£'000 £'000
Access Investment 978 1,188
Financial support provided to students 3H 405
Support for disabled students 138 125
Research and evaluation expenditure 5 20
Total Access and participation spending 1,512 1.748

11. Taxation

The members da not believe that the College was liable for any Corporation Tax arising out of its activities during
eithar year.
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12, Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation
At 1 August 2020
Additions
Disposals

As at 31 July 2021

Depraciation

At 1 August 2020

Charge for the year

Eliminated in respect of disposals

At 31 July 2021

Met book value at 31 July 2021
Met baok value at 31 July 2020
Inherited

Financed by capital grant
Other

Met book value at 31 July 2021

Q qutlzkburn

=%/ College

Freehold Assereinthe Fixtures,
Lapd_and Pla n? and S Fittings Total
Buildings Machinery Constiction Tools and
Freehold iy Equipment
£'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £°000
76,962 7,109 - 8,835 90,706
56 - 365 631 1,042
- - £ (100) (100)
77,018 7,109 355 7,166 91,648
29,359 3,093 5915 28,347
2,386 183 - 507 3.086
: . ; (100) (100
31,725 3,286 - 6,322 41,333
45,293 3,823 _355_ 844 50,315
47,623 4,016 720 52,359
3,155 > 5 3,155
12,584 a0a - 281 13,773
29 554 2815 aba B3 33,387
45,293 3,823 a55 844 50,315

Land and bulldings were valued in 1993 at depreciated replacement cost by the District Valuer. Other tangible
agsets inherited from the local education autherity at incorporation were valued by the Corporation on a
depreciated replacement cost basis with the assistance of independent professional advice.

Included within Fixtures, Fittings Tools and Equipment are laptops that the DIE gifted to the College to support
disadvantaged learnars to access remote leaming. The College has applied Section 34 of FRE102, which reqguired

that donated assets are measured at fair valus to the College (£140k;

13. Investments

Investment in joint venture company at cost

Total Investments

2021 2020
£ £
1 1
1 1

At 31 July 2021 the College held a 77 share of the issued share capital of The Lancashire Gollegas Limited. This
is a company limited by guarantes incorporated in England and Wales. The principle business activity of the
company is to advise and assist educational institutions in respect of funds and grants that may be available to

them.

The Corporation believes that the carrying value for the investments is supported by the underlying net assets.
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14. Endowment assets

2021 2020

£'000 £'000
Balance at 1 August 2020 B0 60
Movement in the year ) )
Balance at 31 July 2021 60 60
Represented by Cash balances 60 60
15. Debtors

2021 2020

£'000 £'000
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade receivables 1,038 1,216
Frepayments and accrued income 664 41
Total Debtors 1,703 2,157
16. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2021 2020

£°000 £'000
Bank loans 716 716
Trade payables 1,118 1,308
Other taxation and social security 367 395
Accruals and deferred income 3,309 2,955
Accrual for untaken annual leave 441 441
Deferred income - Government capital grants 859 872
Ameunts owed to the ESFA 355 33
Total Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 7,205 6,780
17. Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

2021 2020

£'000 £'000
Bank loans 10,896 11,612
Deferred income - Governmant capital grants 12,158 12,811

Total Creditors: amounts falling due after one vear 23,054 24,423
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18. Maturity of debt

Bank loans and overdrafts are repayable as follows:

2021 2020

£'000 £'000
In one year or less 716 716
Between one and two years 716 716
Between two and five years 2148 2 148
In five years ar mare 8,032 8,748
Total Debt 11,612 12,328

A secured loan (security held against the ‘Regional Automotive Technology Hub') of E4m commenced in 2011 at
6.22% repayable by instalments falling due between 1 August 2011 and 31 July 2035 (amount outstanding at 2021
B2 16m: 2020 £2.32m). Revised terms of this loan were agreed in July 2018, which included an increase in the rate
of 0.5% to 8.72% and revised covenants.

A secured loan (security held against the 'Beacon Centre’) of £13.9m commenced in 2013 of which £12.1m is at
5.92%, the remaining £1.8m is subject to LIBOR plus margin and repayable by instalments falling due between 24
July 2013 and 23" July 2038 (Amount outstanding at 2021 £9.5m, 2020 £10.0m). As at 31July 2021, Santander
had provided an altemative to LIBOR, which is due to cease in 2022. The College have assessed the impact a
change to SOMNIA and no material detriment is expected. A change to SONIA has been agreed post 31 July 2021.

An unsecured revolving credit facility of £6m is subject to LIBOR plus margin and is on a revolving credit basis
falling due in August 2022, The amount drawn at 31 July 2021 was £0 (2020 £0).

19. Provisions

Defined

benefit Enhanced
obligations Pension Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 August 2020 208,078 1,525 30,601
Expenditure in the period 2,144 (108) 2,036
Transferred from income and expenditure account (3.,601) 74 (3.527)
At 31 July 2021 27,619 1,491 29,110

Defined benefit obligations relate to the liabilities under the College's membership of the Local Government Pension
Scheme. Further details are given in Note 23.

The enhanced pension provision includes £24,755 (2020 £24,755) In respect of former senior post holders.
The enhanced pension provision relates to the cost of staff who have already left the College’s employ and
commitments for reorganisation costs from which the College cannot reasonably withdraw at the Statement of

Financial Position date. This provision has been recalculated in accordance with guidance issued by the funding
bodies.
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19. Provisions {continued)

The principal assumptions for this calculation are:

Price Inflation
Discount Rate

20. Analysis of changes In net debt

Cash and cash equivalents

Diebt due within one year
Ciebt due after one year

Q) assioum

Borrowings

Total changes in net debt

2021 2020

£'000 £'000

1.30% 1.30%

2.20% 2.20%

At 1 August Other At 31 July
2020 Casifiows changes 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
8,454 3,832 13,286
(716} 716 (718) (718)
(11,612) - 718 {10,888)
(12.328) 716 - {11,612}
(2.874) 4,548 " 1,674

21. Capital commitments

The College had £130k of capital commitments in year end an asset under construction as at 31 July 2021 (31

July 2020: none).

Whilst not a capital commitment at the balance sheet date, the College was advised of funding from the FE Capital
Transformation Fund in respect of the Victoria Building. At the year end discussions were ongoing in respect of
the detail and scope of the project, including the value of College match funding.

22. Lease obligations

The College had no operating lease commitments as at 31 July 2021 (31 July 2020: none).

23. Defined benefit obligations

The College’s employees belong to one of two principal pension schemes; the Teachers' Pension Scheme,
England and Wales (TPS} for academic and related staff and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
nion-teaching staff, which is managed by Lancashire County Council. Both are defined benafit schemas,

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent gualified actuariss. The latest
formal actuarial valuation of the TPS was 31 March 2019 and of the LGPS 31 March 2013.

Total Pension Cost for the Year Ended

Teachers' Pension Scheme : contributions paid
Local Government Pension Scheme ;
Contributions paid
FRS 102 charge
FRS 102 charge In interast
Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Enhanced pension charge to Statement of Comprehensive

Income

Total pension cost for year within staff costs
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2021
£'000
2,095
1,016
2,144
{456)
2,704
55
4,854

2020
£°000
2,085
1,068
1,832
(383}
2,618
81
4,804
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23. Defined benefit obligations (continued)

The TPS is an unfunded schame and mambers contribute on a 'pay as you go° basis — these confributions, along
with those made by employers, are credited to the Exchequer under arrangements governed by the above Act.
Retirermant and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament,

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102 (28.11), the TPS is a multi-employer pension plan. The College is unable
to identify its share of the undetlying assets and liabilities of the plan.

Accordingly, the College has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions
to the scheme as if it were a defined-contribution plan. The College has set out above the infarmation available
on the plan and the implications forthe College in terms of the anticipated contribution rates.

The valuation of the TPS is carried out in line with regulations made under the Public Service Pension Act 2013,
Waluations credit the teachers' pension account with a real rate of returmn assuming funds are invested in notional
investments that produce that real rate of return.

The latest actuarial review of the TPS was carried oul as at 31 March 2019. The valuation report was published
by the Department for Education {the Department in April 2019. The valuation reported total scheme liabllitias
{pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future banefits) for service to the effective date of E218
billion, and noticnal assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at the
valuation date) of £198 billion diving a notional past service deficit of £22 billion.

As a result of the valuation, new employer contribution rates were set at 23.68% of pensionable pay from
September 2019 onwards {compared to 16.48% during 20181 9). DfE has agreed to pay a Teachers’ Pension
Scheme Grant to cover the additional costs during the 2020/21 academic year.

A full copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation can be found on the Teachers' Pension Scheme
website,

The pension contribution paid to TPS in the year amounted to £2.095m (2020: £2.210m)

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGFS is a funded defined-benefit plan, with the assefs held in separate funds administered by Lancashire
County Councll. The total contributions made for the year ended 31 July 2021 were £1.403m, of which employer's
contributions totalled £1.016m and employees’ contributions totalled E0.387m. The agreed contribution rates for
future years are 15.5% for employers and range from 5.5% to 12.5% for employees, depending on salary.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at'31 March 2018 updated ta 31 July
2021 by a qualified independent actuary.

At 31 At 31

July Jduly

2021 2020

Hate of increase in salaries 4.10% 3.80%
Future pensions incroases 2.60% 2.30%
Discount rate for scheme liahilities 1.60% 1.60%
Inflation assumption (Consumer Prica Index) 2.70% 2.40%
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 50.0% 50.0%
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23. Defined benefit obligations (continued)

The current mortality assumpftions include sufficient allewance for future improvements in mortality rates. The

assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65 are:

31 July 31 July
2021 2020
Retiting today:
Males 2244 22.3
Females 251 25.0
Rediring in 20 years:
Males 23.9 23.8
Females 26.9 268
Sensitivity analysis of Deficit £'000 £'000
Discount rate +0.1% (1,808) {1,682}
Pay growth +0.1% 198 204
Mortality assumption — 1 year increase 3,056 2,710
Inflation rate +0.1% 1,843 1,713
The Caollege’s share of the assets in the scheme and the expected rates of return ware:
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Equities instrumenis 34,208 27,246
Government Bonds - -
Other Bonds 3.600 4122
Property 6,792 8,125
Cash 1.426 1,075
Other 21,801 18,178
Total fair value of plan assets 67,917 59,746
Actual return / (less) on plan
e 8,333 (1,345)

The amount included in the Statement of Financial Position in respect of the defined benefit pension plan is as

fallows:
2021
£'000
Fajr value of plan assets 67,917
Present value of plan liabilities {95,471)
Presant value of unfunded liabilities (65)
MNet pensions (liability) {(Note 19) (27.619)

2020
£'000

59,746
(88,755)
(67)_

{29,0786)
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23. Defined benefit obligations (continued)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income In respect of the plan are as follows:

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Amounts included in staff costs
Current service cost 2597 2,375
Past service cost - 125
Curtailments 59 79
Total 2,666 2,578
Amounts included in interest and other finance costs 2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Met interest cost (456) (383)
Amount recegnised in Other Comprehensive Income 2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Return on pension plan assets 8,333 {1,345)
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of plan liabilities (4,732} (7.885)
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 3,601 {9,230)
Movement in net defined benefit (liabllity)/asset during year
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Met defined liability at 1 August (29,078) (17,914)
Movement in year:
Current service cost {2,597) {2,375)
Employer contributions 1,016 1,069
Past service costs - {125)
Curtailments {69) (79)
Administration expenses {38) (39)
Met interest on the defined (liability) (458) (383)
Actuarial gain / (loss) 3,601 (9.230)

MNet defined liability at 31 July (27,619) {29,076)
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23. Defined benefit obligations (continued)

Asset and Liability Reconciliation

2021 2020

£°000 £'000
Changes in the present value of defined benefit Gbligatiﬁns
Defined benefit obligations at start of year B8.822 TE.E11T
Current service cost 2,597 2,375
Interest cost 1.411 1,719
Past service costs = 125
Contributions by scheme participants 387 411
Changes in financial assumptions 3,777 5,908
Estimated benefits paid {1,527) (1,406)
Curtailments 63 [
Defined benefit obligations at end of year 95,536 88,822
Changes in falr value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at start of year 58,746 60,697
Interest on plan assets 955 1,336
Heturn ( {loss) on plan assets 7.378 (2.322)
Administration expenses (38) (39)
Employer contributions 1,016 1,069
Contributions by scheme participants 387 411
Estimated benefits paid {1,527) {1,408)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 67,917 59,746

These accounts include a historic past service cosl of £586k, as adjusted for in 2019, in respect of the MceCloud /
Sergeant judgment which ruled that the transitional protection for some members of public service schemes
impleamented when they were reformed constituted age discrimination. This provision is 0.61% of the total scheme
liability as at 31 July 2021. The calculation of the adjustment to the past service costs arise from the outcome of
the Court of Appeal judgement is based on a number of key assumptions including:

the form of remedy adopted

how the remedy will be implemented

which members will be affectad by the remedy
the sarming assumptions

the withdrawal assumption

The other financial and daemographic assumptions adopted to caleulate the past service cost are the sams as
those used to calculate the overall scheme liability. Adopting different assumptions, or making other adjustments
to reflect behavioural changes stemming from the judgment, would be expected 1o change the disclosed past
service cost. Similarly, allowing for variations in individual members’ future service or salary progression is
expected to produce higher costs. The past service cost iz parlicularly sensitive to the difference between
assumed long term general pay growth and the CPI. If the long term salary growth assumptions were 0.5% pa
lower, then the past service cost disclosed here would be expected to reduce by 50% and conversely a 0.5% pa
increase would increase the estimated cost by 65%.
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24. Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Cellege’s operations and the composition of the Board of Governors being drawn from
local public and private sector arganisations it is inevitable that transactions will take place with organisations in
which a member of the Board of Governars may have an interest, All transactions invelving such organisations
are conducted at arm's length and in accordance with the College’s financial regulations and normal procuremeant
proceduras.

The total expenses paid 1o or on behall of the Governars during the year was ENIL; O Governaors (2020: £531; 5
Gowvernors). This represents travel and subsistence expenses and other out of pocket expenses incurred in
attending Governer meatings and charily events in thelr official capacity.

Mo Governar has received any remuneration or waived payments from the College during the year (2020: Mong).
Transactions are detailed balow:

Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council is an organisation in which a Governor has declared influence as Key
Management Personngl: the College incurred expenditure of £198,440 (2020 - £183,872), and sarned income of
£378,797 {2020 - £451,753).

Blackburn Rovers Ltd and Blagkbum Rovers Community Trust are organisations in which a Governor has
declared influence as Key Management Personnel, with Joint Control: the College incurred expendilura of £2,550
(2020 - £2 103}, and earnad income of £70 (2020 - £4,050}).

P M & M Solutions For Business is an organisation in which a Governor has declared influence as Key
Management Personnel: the College Incurred expenditure of E300 (2020 - £300), and earned income of £4,100
(2020 - £3,090),

East Lancashire NHS Trust is an organisation in which a Governer has declared influence as Key Management
Personnel: the College incurred expenditure of £41,234 (2020 - EN/a) and samed income of £3,225 (2020 - EN/a).

Advance HE is an organisation in which a Governor has declared influsnce as Key Management Parsonngl: the
College incurred expanditure of ENIL (2020 — £3.015),

Hive is an organisation in which a Governar has declared influence as Key Management Personnel: the College
incurred expenditure of £MIL {2020 — £150).

Lancaster University is an organisation in which a Governor has declared Influsnce as Key Management
Personnel: the College incurred expenditure of E763,172 (2020 - £831,735) (Degree validation) and eamed
income of £6,979 (2020 - £2,404). The Governor is not involved in these arrangaments.

Manchester College is an organisation in which a Governor has declared influence as Joint Contral: the Collage
incurred expenditurs of EMIL (2020 - £11,000).

BAE Systems is an organisation in which a Governor has declared influence as Management Personal: the
College eamned income of £1,796 (2020 - £N/A),

Graham & Brown is an organisation in which a Govermnor has declared influence as Director: the Collegs incurred
expenditure of 2300 (2020 - EN/A).

Lewis Mitchell Salicitors is an organisation in which a Governor has declared influence as Owner: the College
incurred expenditure of £254 {2020 - EN/A).

Mybble Interactive is an organisation in which a Governor has declared influence as Full Control: the Collage
incurred expenditure of 217,825 (2020 - EMN/A),

Transactions with the ESFA and Office for Students are detailed in notes 2, and 16.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
25, Amounts Disbursed as agent
Learner Support Funds

Funding body grants — bursary support
Funding body grants — discretionary learner support

Disbursed to Students

Administration costs

Balance unspent at 31 July, included in creditors

(Dt

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
163 136
1,107 1,120
1,270 1,256
(912) (751)
(35) (34)
323 471

Funding body grants are available solely for students. In the majority of instances, the College only acts as a
paying agent. In these circumstances, the grants and related disbursements are therefore exciuded from the

Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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